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Minutes: Provide for a guardianship services system and appropriations.

Senator John (Jack) T. Traynor, Chairman called the Judiciary committee to order. All
Senators were present. The hearing opened with the following testimony:

Testimony In Support of the Bill:

Rep. Delomore - District 43 introduced the bill {meter 3841). This bill came out of the interim
comrmittee that I chaired, criminal justice along with Sen. Trenbeath and Senator Triplett. Thank
you goes to ND Guardianship task force who work hard in helping our committee come up with
three quality bill drafts. Discussed the three bills (SB 2028, SB 2029, and SB 2030) and how
they work together.

Sen. Traynor questioned appropriations to fund program are any of these folks who would be
wards under this bill be able to pay for services rendered? I believe not, this bill is targeted to the

ones ineligible for developmental disabilities case management services. That is why we set it

up as a separate entity.




Page 2
Senate Judiciary Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2028
Hearing Date January 10, 2005

Rodger Wetzel, LSW, MPA Eldercare Program Director (meter 44244) Gave attach testimony
(Att. #1) and included (att. #2) ND Guardianship Task Force.

Sen. Nelson wanted to know wow many people does Mr. Wetzel anticipate will be on this
program. (meter 4800) to be referred to later with a survey.

Donna Byzewski, CO-chair ND Guardianship Task Force and Supervisor of Guardian ship
Division at Catholic Charities ND. (meter 5058) See attachment #3. Sen. Traynor asked how
currently these things are handled. (meter 5755) Discussion of the haphazardness of current
program. The results of this is that often a person is either without any guardianship or they are
in over restrictive guardianship i.e. state hospital, because there is no other alternative. This was
is costly ie., a mentally ill person refusing to do there daily medication may end up in the
Emergency room. Sen. Nelson asked if this was put/included in the Governors budget? No. We
submitted this bill to his office but he chose to not include it in his budget. It would be a new
service.

Bill Chaussee, Admin of Guardian and Protective Services, Inc. (meter 6237) gave testimony
{Att #5). Discussed the difference of the people that will be charged for services, part or all, and
the ones who have absolutely no funds available for service. (side B of tape 1) discussion of cost
of program/budget and funding,

Vonette Richter (meter 362) gave testimony (Att #6).

Mel Webster, ND Catholic Conf. and Attorney in Guardianship, Bismarck (meter 698) Spoke in
support of bill. Stated that this although is not a state wide program and needs to be. Cited a

case.
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Bruce Murry, Brain Injury Assoc. of ND read Mary Simonson, President’s testimony (meter
879). Senator Syverson questioned why this could not be a function of Human Serviced. Mr.
Murry responded that it was more cost efficient to do this with private contract.

Testimony in Opposition of the Bill:

None |

Testimony in Neutral to the Bill:

JoAnn Hoesel, Director of the Division of Mental Health & Substance Abuse for the
Department of Human Services. (meter 1100) gave testimony (Att. #8).

Sen. Nelson (meter 1202) asked questions on the impact of the program and amount of

additional people it would take to “gear up”.

Senator John (Jack) T. Traynor, Chairman closed the Hearing
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Minutes: Relating to establishment and modification of parole expiration dates.

Senator John (Jack) T. Traynor, Chairman called the Judiciary committee to order. All
. Senators were present. The hearing reopened with the following:

Senator Triplett moved to do pass SB 2028 Sen. Nelson seconded the motion. All in favor, no

oppose.

Carrier: Senator Triplett

Senator John (Jack) T. Traynor, Chairman closed the hearing.




REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: SR-05-0230
January 10,2005 1:12 p.m. Carrier: Triplett
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2028: Judiciary Committee {(Sen. Traynor, Chairman) recommends DO PASS and BE

REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee {6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND
NOT VOTING). SB 2028 was rereferred to the Appropriations Committee.

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 SR-05-0230
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Minutes: Chairman Holmberg opﬁdéeeting on SB 2028.

Vonnette Richter, Legislative Council appeared before the committee to provide an overview
of SB 2028. Ms. Richter, provided excerpts from 2005 Interim Criminal Justice Report for SB
2028, entitled Guardianship Services Study. This is attached as appendix L

Roger Wetzel, Director of the Eldercare Program at St. Alexius appeared in support of SB
2028. Mr. Wetzel provided the committee with written testimony, see appendix II. Questions
were asked regarding how the Eldercare Program arrived at the $772,000 or $3,000/ person total
funds. Mr. Wetzel also supplied the committee with a list of North Dakota Guardianship State
Task Force members, see appendix IIL

Donna Byzewski, CO-Chair, ND Guardianship Task Force appeared in support of SB 2028.

Ms. Byzewski provided the committee with written testimony, see appendix IV.

Sen. Thane (3398) : “Who initiates this program?”
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Mr. Byzewski: “It could be anyone from an ER doctor, Priest, Primary Physician, or Adult
proactive Services.”

Questions were raised regarding the set up costs of this program. Ms. Byzewski indicated that the
total number of finds in which they asked for would be all the money they needed to run the
program, adding that if a person was receiving funds from another entity they would have a
contract with that entity to liquidate assets and place them into a revolving fund. Ms. Byzewski
enclosed a 2 year budget summary with her testimony, see appendix V.

Tom Tupa, Guardianship Task Force appeared in support of SB 2028. Mr. Tupa responded
to questions raised by members of the committee. No written testimony was provided.

Bruce Murry, ND Prot. & Advoc. Project appeared in support of SB 2028. No written
testimony was provided.

Sen. Mathern (4596): “How long from the first call will it take for the process to get
underway?”

Mr. Murry: “Weeks, days, hours, it depends on the case and the circumstance.”

Jack McDonald, ARC ND appeared in support of SB 2028. No written testimony was provided.

Ted Gladden, State Court Administrator appeared on behave of the State Judicial

Conference, in support of SB 2028.
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Minutes: Chairman Holmberg opened- discussion on SB 2028

. Sen. Fischer went over proposed amendment # .0101, by reading it aloud. Stating that the
important piece of this bill is that we get the system the gurdianships and training for volunteers
to in the bill and keep it alive. They agreed that to keep this going is the most important piece to
have the $40,000 and keep the bill alive. Sen. Fischer moved the amendment, seconded by Sen.
Andrist.
Sen. Christmann: On line 10 it mentions contracting, was that left in there or was that supposed
to be changed.
Sen. Fischer: The language is flexible an that it may inciude contracting if they so choose to.
A voice vote was taken, motion carried. Motion was made for a DO PASS as AMENDED by
Sen. Fischer, seconded by Sen. Mathern. Roll call vote was taken, 14 yeas, 0 nays, and 1 absent

and not voting. Sen. Fischer will carry the bill.
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: SR-30-2932
February 15, 2005 11:26 a.m. Carrler: Fischer
Insert 1.C: 50090.0101 Title: .0200

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2028: Appropriations Commitiee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
(14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2028 was placed on the Sixth
order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 4, replace "shall" with "may"

Page 1, line 5, remove "contract with an entity to"

Page 1, line 14, replace "$772,550" with "$40,000"

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

This amendment reduces the general fund appropriation provided to the Department of Human

Services for the purpose of contracting for the establishment and maintenance of a
guardianship services system for vulnerable adults by $732,550, from $772,550 to $40,000.

{2) DESK, (3} COMM Page No. 1 SR-30-2932
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Minutes:

Chairman Price opened the hearing of SB 2028.

Vonette Richter, attorney for Legislative Council. [ staffed the Interim Criminal Justice
Committee. One of the studies assigned to that committee was the study of guardianship
services in the state. The committee worked closely with the ND Guardianship Task Force and
prepared the bill that you have in front of you. There are two sections to the bill aﬁd I will go
over the changes from the original version. The changes are that on line 4 the original bill said
“shall contract with an entity to create.” The other change was the appropriation amount was
$772,550 in the original bill and it’s $40,000 in the engrossed bill.

Rep. Uglem: Can you tell me how they managed to lower the appropriation that much?

Richter: Ican’t. Iwasn’tin the Appropriation Committee to hear the discussion. I don’t know

what the reasoning behind that was.



Page 2

House Human Services Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2028
Hearing Date 7 Mar 05

Tom Tupa, representing the Guardianship Task Force and filling in for Senator Tom
Fischer. Senator Fischer was going to explain about the appropriation and explain the
amendment being passed around and why the Senate did what they did with regard to reducing
the appropriation. (Amendment attached.) The amendment is simply to change line 14, on
page 1 from $40,00 back up to $466,888. The explanation for that is the second sheet that you
received that explains the expenditures that will be used during the biennium with regard to the
establishment of the program. One of the reasons the bill was reduced to $40,000 was we had
been working with the Senate Appropriations Committee and there was some resistance prior to
their final action with the $770,000. As the bill points out it deals with an independent contract
arrangement through the Department of Human Services. The dollars were in there and there
was some question about that although we felt we could justify that $770,000 without any
difficulty; however, Senator Fischer and a few others were very concerned with getting the bill
from the Senate side to the House side keeping it alive. After we sat and visited with him for
some time he said let’s just put the $40,000 and make sure it sails through the Senate, which it
did, and comes over to the House side and then we’ll try fix all of that over here. He has put the
burden into your Committee and your chamber and he feels confident that you people will take
care of it.

Rep. Devlin: Why would you expect the policy committee to make the change. If it were a
financial issue I would think you would want this amendment placed on by Appropriations.

That’s where the bill will go next.
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Tupa: We thought that perhaps this committee would deal with it and then refer it

Appropriations at which time we would discuss it one more time with those folks. We would

like the support of this committee.

Rodger Wetzel, director of the Eldercare Program at St. Alexius, testified in favor of the bill.
(Testimony attached.)

Donna Byzewski, ND Guardianship Task Force, testified in favor of the bill. (Testimony
attached.) She distributed a list of the task force members and resolutions from different
agencies: ND Judicial Council, AARP North Dakota, ND Association for the Disabled,
Guardianship Association of ND, Partners, Inc., Catholic Charities ND, Guardian and
Protective Services, Inc. ( attached.)

Carol Watrell, guardian. (See Attached Testimony)

Tape2:

Senator Tom Fischer, District 46:

I am not going to take an awful amount of your time, I am here in support of this bill, it has been

before us the past three sessions, in one form or another. It is time to do something about it. In

the Senate, we pulled a large appropriation out of it, but I would like to present an amendment

replacing part of that appropriation. In order to get this up and running, there are some
administrative costs, however I left the training standards basically because I wasn’f sure what

would happen in the house committee, but I am hoping we can work it out. This is a worthwhile
cause and we need, as citizens of ND, take care of those who can’t take care of themselves. I

would hope you will give this a positive conclusion.
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Chairman Price: When you proposed the amendment on the Senate side, to reduce this to
$40,000. Was that to just keep it alive?

Sen. Fischer: Yes, we had other areas that were requiring over 2 million dollars and I didn’t
want to get this bill to get mixed in that. If nothing else to get that funding for it. Before, we
had $50,000 in it and it didn’t pass. It has a lot of merit and should be put into place.
Chairman Price: Was there any particular reason, other than money, that you took out the
contract with an entity?

Sen. Fischer: No, it was strictly the dollars.

Mel Webster, Attorney Testimony attached.

Bruce Murray: Testimony attached.

Rep. Porter: How many cases do you have a year?

Bruce Murray: 6 or more.

Shelly Peterson, Long Term Care Association. Testimony Attached.
Steve Rixen, Med Center One Health Systems:

I am here today to give our support to SB 2028. It is a small price to pay, to assist with helping
others who can not help themselves. [urge a Do Pass recommendation and would take any
questions.

Brian Quigley, Director of Montrail & Burke County Social Services.
We also would like to echo support for this bill. In the past 2 months, I have dealt with 3 cases,
of elderly people needing guardianship. We have no options, one case an individual has been

transported to Minot hospital, in multiple cases via ambulance. That individual refused medical

treatment and had friends pick them up. That person will die, unless we can get a guardian.
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Chairman Price opened discusston on HB 2028.

Rep. Devlin: Is the $40,000 figure, send it to Appropriations?

Chairman Price: It will go to Appropriations, appropriation over $5,000 , Fiscal impact of
$50,000.

Rep. Kaldor: Senator Fischer has offered an amendment.

Chairman Price: I wish there would be some way we could involve those families that just
wash their hands of it or move away, or whatever.

Rep. Kreidt: Regarding this, these people just don’t have anyone there. We have Bill Chaussee,
Guardian Services, in our area and we use him a lot. Without him, we would have a very serious
problem. I would like to see the bill go forward. The bill is really needed. I make the motion.

Rep. Nelson: Second.

Rep. Pietsch: That is just with the bill, not with the amendment?




Page 2

House Human Services Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2028
Hearing Date March 9, 2005

Chairman Price: Their are going to have to figure out how much money is available for this to
get started. There is always the fear that when you go down there with the larger amount, they
will just kill it. If we start with a figure down here, and try and make the argument for the
increases in dollars, maybe you can get somewhere, but I don’t know if we can get what they are
asking.

Rep. Pietsch: If there are any extra funds, they can adjust it later. Is that correct?

Chairman Price: They can raise it back up to whatever amount they want or whatever they
think they can find.

Rep. Nelson: I question when you place a number like $40,000, do we limit ourselves on
funding this adequately? That seems like such a low number, they might except it.

Chairman Price: We have tried $50,000 in the past and they haven’t passed it.

Rep. Nelson: 1 agree, you don’t know what they will do.

Rep. Devlin: I would support it, but with Senator Fischer’s amendment, it would sure get their
attention.

Chairman Price: The senate appropriations actually decreased it.

Rep. Kaldor: I agree with Rep. Nelson and understand Rep. Devlin. If we send it to them as it
came to us from the Senate, I believe it conveys that we agree with the amount. I don’t the
amount should be, but maybe we should somehow convey to them that there are some significant
costs involved, as Senator Fischer has identified. Is it worth having in place with just $40,000, I
don’t know.

Chairman Price: At least it is a start, to get it down there. I don’t know that I agree necessarily

that we need 1 1/2 FTE’s and a 1/2 support staff. What I would like see them do is take some of
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the money, and even if they do just the training in the standards piece, it’s a beginning. Or even
if they used it for court costs, if they take this money and go at least to one piece of it, we have
had interim studies, bills and we have not gotten anywhere. It bothers me when they say, we
need to have $15,000 to set standards. There has to be a set of standards out there they we could
adopt from some other state.

Rep. Nelson: What do you think is a good number?

Chairman Price: Do you mean what we need to pay for, or what we can get passed? I would be
happy if we can get this through.

Rep. Nelson: Then we should just leave it then.

Rep. Devlin: Madam Chairman, as you pointed out, this certainly is not a new topic to this
committee, it always seems to run into funding wall. Sometimes even with $40,000, you can get
at least get it started. Then you look for more funding next session.

Chairman Price: If they could fund a guardian or some court cases. Just to get it started. When
this was presented before with larger amounts, it went nowhere.

Rep. Nelson: Question.

Rep. Pietsch: Second

Do Pass and re-referred to Appropriations.

Vote: 10-0-2

Rep. Kreidt: Carrier
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2028, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Rep. Price, Chairman)
recommends DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee
(10 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2028 was
rereferred to the Appropriations Committee.
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Minutes: Chairman Delzer called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m. All members present.
. Rep. Gary Kreidt, District 33, introduced SB 2028, commenting on nursing facilities with

residents who have no family members or gnardians available. It is time for a serious look at

appropriating $466,888 to get this worthy program up and running.

Chairman Delzer: Explain vulnerable adults who are ineligible for DD case management

services (line 5 and 6 of bill). Who are you trying to cover?

Rep. Kreidt: If we could defer that question to the experts, I would appreciate it.

Chairman Delzer: If the bill is passed at $40,000, is it going to do any good? Should we kill it?

Rep. Kreidt: We left it at $40,000 to get it out of commiittee. The basic program can get off the

ground, with the hopes of getting more money in it later.

Chairman Delzer: Did you ask the Department of Human Services about the “may start”

language?

Rep. Kreidt: No.
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Vice Chair Pollert: Rep. Kreidt, were the $40,000 or the $466,888 in the Governor’s budget?
Rep. Kreidt: I do not know.

Chairman Delzer: No. And it is not a continuing appropriation. Protection and Advocacy has
been pushing for it, but it resides in the Department of Human Services.

Rep. Metcalf: Is Catholic Family Services similar?

Chairman Delzer: No. That deals only with DD people.

Rep. Wieland: Primarily, it deals with people who have assets?

Rep. Kreidt: No. This is for anyone in need of this service, including those with assets.

Rep. Metcalf: If this is done by agencies, why do we need for separate agencies?

Rep. Kreidt: I do not know.

After discussion on a different bill, committee members turned their attention back to SB 2028,
Tom Tupa, North Dakota Guardianship Task Force, testified on SB 2028 (see one-page
double-sided 2 Year Guardianship Program Budget handout that was given to Sen. Fischer to
consider 3/7/05). For the most part, people needing guardianship are not being served in hospital

and LTC settings.

Rodger Wetzel, North Dakota Guardianship Task Force and Eldercare Director of St.
Alexis Hospital, testified on SB 2028 (see three-page written testimony by his NDGTF co-chair,
Donna Byzewski). He said a survey which showed that the elderly with Alzheimer’s or a stroke,
the chronically il w/ schizophrenia, and brain-injured people are the ones typically not being

served and have no money. This means attorneys have to be begged to deal with these cases.
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Chairman Delzer stated the money goes to court costs and to Catholic Family Services, but
asked how many would apply to a RFP.

Wetzel: We have guardianship protective services, both non-protective and those who pay for a
fee.

Lynn Jacobsen, Elder Rights Administrator for Aging Services for the Department of
Human Services, spoke on the current Code for vulnerable adults, found in chapter 50; chapter
28 deals with guardianship. It costs $350,000 for two years for Human Service Centers and
salaries of those dealing with vulnerable people. No federal money is available

Chairman Delzer: From the department’s standpoint, would $40,000 be worth it?

Jacobsen: Yes. It would establish training and standards.

Chairman Delzer: Isn’t the seminar system in place?

Jacobsen: It is a payment service. Once guardianship is established, we are out of it.

Chairman Delzer called a recess after Jacobsen finished.
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Minutes: Chairman Delzer called the meeting to order on SB 2028. The Senate took it down to
$40,000. The House passed it and it is here at $40,000. There is a request to take it back up to
$466,888. The bill sponsors would take any amount they could.

Rep. Metcalf: Could we provide court costs for guardianship services?

Chairman Delzer: This is open for discussion. We will wait for Rep. Pollert to come back.
Rep. Metcalf: Just seeing if there is an interest.

Chairman Delzer: My take on it is just the $40,000 right now. Tt would not go to conference
committee with that.

Rep. Kerzman: I move $40,000 for Training and Standards and $188,000 for court costs.
Rep. Metcalf: T second it.

Chairman Delzer: Do you want to try a substitute?

Rep. Metcalf: Yes. I motion a substitute for $40,000 for court costs and $188,000 for

guardianship services.
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Rep. Kerzman: [ second it.

Rep. Metcalf: Basically, T was told they can get by without administration services costs. But the
court costs and guardianship service, they definitely have to have.

Chairman Delzer: The $40,000 was wanted for standards to establish criteria. This looks like it
will be a contract with Catholic Family Services.

Rep. Kerzman: If we just give them an amount, they could establish training and standards out
of that. Some of the court costs could be absorbed by the court, I think. We definitely need
guardianship services. It could cost us more if it is not available.

Chairman Delzer: We have to decide how we are going to do this. I agree that if we change the
money, we do not Have to specify its use. I am going to support the $40,000 level.

Rep. Kerzman: I will agree to $40,000, but I think it should go to conference commitiee.
Chairman Delzer: We will be conferencing HB 1012 and we could add it there. I have never
supported guardianship in the past. The federal adult protective money has been used and
ombudsmen. Everyone has to decide for himself, though. The clerk will call the roll for the
substitute motion to designate $40,000 for court costs and $188,000 for guardianship for SB
2028. Motion fails 3-3.

Rep. Wieland: 1 cannot support the amount of $228,000. I would make a motion to make it a
total of $75,000, with $25,000 for court costs and $50,000 for guardianship. A two-to-one basis.
Rep. Kerzman: I second it.

Chairman Delzer: The clerk will call the roll. Motion fails 3-3. Does anyone wish to try

something else?

Rep. Bellew: I move a Do Pass on SB 2028 as is.
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Chairman Delzer: Motion dies for lack of second.

Rep. Wieland: I make the motion of $65,000 with $20,000 designated for court costs and
$45,000 for guardianship.

Vice Chair Pollert: 1 second it for discussion purposes.

Chairman Delzer and Rep. Wieland discussed language using “up to” the amounts of money.
Chairman Delzer: Stephanie (L.C), do you understand?

Stephanie/LC said yes and restated motion.

Chairman Delzer: The clerk will call the roll. We have a Do Pass On Amendment with 4-2.
Rep. Wieland: 1 would move a Do Pass As Amended on SB 2028.

Rep. Metcalf: I second it.

Chairman Delzer: The clerk will call the roll. Motion fails 3-3. Committee members, if we vote
again, it will go the same way. Are any of you going to offer amendments in full committee? We
can take it over without recommendation.

Vice Chair Pollert: I could go along with that, but probably would not support it in full.

Rep. Wieland: 1 could carry it.

Chairman Delzer: I would not expect that of anyone.

Rep. Kerzman: I think we should just Do Not Pass. There is not much with it.

Rep. Wieland: 1 think they would like to get it set up with any amount of dollars. They would
like to see the bill pass. It does go to a conference committee and this gets it going.

Vice Chair Pollert: I have another amendment. I move we do away with all amendments and go
back to the original bill with $40,000 with the original language.

Rep. Bellew: I second it.
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Chairman Delzer: The clerk will call the roll. Motion carries 4-2. We are back to the bare bill.
Do you wish to try anything else?

Rep. Wieland: I will move a Do Pass on SB 2028.

Rep. Bellew: [ second it.

Chairman Delzer: Discussion?

Rep. Metcalf: It is the same bill that came from the Senate, so no conference committee.
Chairman Delzer: The clerk will call the roll. Motion fails 3-3. T will take this over Without
Recommendation. I do not think we have to make a motion. Stephanie (LC), check what is the

proper procedure for this in the future. Have an amendment drawn up for full committee.

Hearing adjourned on SB 2028.
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., Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman opened the discussion on SB2028.
Rep. Jeff Delzer explained that this came out of committee with no recommendation. This bill
puts in place guardianship services with an appropriation of $40,000 to Human Services for the
purposes of contracting for the establishment and maintenance of a guardianship service system
for vulnerable adults who are eligible for DD case management services. This is only effective
during the 2005-07 biennium. The Senate reduced this bill to $40,000 from the original $70,000.
Our subcommittee dfscussed several proposals and all were defeated.
Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman clarified that the bill stands at $40,000 for the start of services to
this population of people, but it would not fund other proposals such as outreach.
Rep. Ole Aarsvold asked if there was any opposition

Rep. Jeff Delzer answered that there was no full hearing on this as we took the definition of the

. bill from the standing committee who referred this to us. Part of the opposition is that this has
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been before us a couple of times before and some may really need this and others may be forced
into this. Another concern is that this should be covered under the jobs ombudsman program.
This bill passed out of two or three standing committees at $40,000 and there is reluctance here
to add any additional funding. Rep Delzer moved a Do Pass motion for SB2028

Rep. Al Carlson seconded

Rep. Ralph Metcalf moved a substitute motion to amend SB2028 with amendment #0202
which would increase the funding from $40,000 to $278,888.

Rep. Ole Aarsvold seconded

Rep. Francis J. Wald asked what the dollars would be used for

Rep. Ralph Metcalf énswered that this would be administrative costs, training standards costs,
court costs, and guardianship costs. There is a genuine need out there for this program and they
need the additional moneys to get this program off the ground. (meter Tape #1, side B, #6.1)
Rep. Francis J. Wald asked if lines 9-10 of the bill meant that they would contract out with
Lutheran Social Services or the like, or if Human Services would do this work.

Rep. Ralph Metcalf answered that this work will be contracted out and that is where these
funds would go. These groups are already conducting guardianship programs..

Rep. Jeff Delzer explained that this was a new program that is over and above the Governor’s
Budget and will probably come in even higher the next time.

Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman asked where most of these eligible people reside.

Rep. Ralph Metcalf answered that they don’t reside anywhere. They are indigents who end up

in the jails or the sometimes in the nursing homes, but most are homeless. Without a guardian
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they do not take their medications or take care of themselves which only makes the problem
WOrSe.

Rep. Al Carlson commented that this bill went through 2 policy committees and we don’t have
nearly the information they did in order to make this policy decision for $40,000. If this is such a
high priority it should have been included in thé Human Services budget.

Rep. Ralph Metcalf commented that the policy committees changed the appropriations in this
bill and there is a definite need out there for this program. This is a justifiable cost since they are
probably costing the state more than this now since they end up in the jail systems and the public
nursing homes.

Rep. Alon C. Wieland commented that this program is a good program but it is unclear at what
level it should be funded. This bill should be supported and it would be bad to see the level of
funding cause the entire bill to fail.

Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman called for a voice vote on the substitute motion to amend
SB2028 with amendment # 0202. Motion failed. (meter Tape #1, side B, #11.4)

Rep. Ralph Metcalf moved to further amend SB2028 with amendment #0201 which would
increase the $40,000 to $100,000 for the funding for this program.

Rep. Ole Aarsvold seconded

Rep. Jeff Delzer commented that this was looked at in the subcommittee and if the money is
changed in this bill- there will need to be a conference on it.

Rep. Ole Aarsvold asked if the county commissioner reported any expenses caused from not

having this program in place.
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Rep. Alon C. Wieland answered that there were some costs reported. Catholic Family Services
took most of the cases that were out there but they received no remuneration for their efforts.
Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman called for a voice vote on the motion to amend SB2028 with
amendment #0201. Vote was unclear. Rep Svedjan called for a roll call vote on the motion.
Motion failed with a vote of 9 yeas, 14 neas, and 0 absences.

Rep. Keith Kempenich moved a Do Pass motion on SB2028.

Rep. Alon C. Wieland seconded

Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman called for a roll call vote on the Do Pass motion for SB2028.
Motion carried with a vote of 15 yeas, 8 neas and 0 absences. Rep Kreidt will carry the bill to
the house floor.

Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chairman closed the discussion on SB2028.
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SB 2028, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman)
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Engrossed SB 2028 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.
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~ Testimony in support of SB 2028 - January 10, 2005

-Rodger Wetzel, LSW, MPA, Eldercare Program Director,
St. Alexius Medical Center, Bismarck, ND

Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee:

My name is Rodger Wetzel. | am the Director of the Eldercare Program at St. Alexius.
I have been in this position for 19 years. Prior to this position, | was the Assistant Director of
the Aging Services Division of the NDDHS. | also am a member of the Guardianship
Association of ND (GAND), and was elected co-chair of a state Guardianship Task Force
which has been addressing guardianship needs in ND. {Membership information is being
provided.)

In the past 33 years | have been directly involved in over 300 guardianships. Most often
| have served as the “court visitor”, the person/social worker who completes the psycho-sociat
assessment for the district judge and client prior to the guardianship hearing.

In North Dakota we do not have a system, and often not even the essential services, if
some of our most vulnerable people, because of mental incapacity, need a guardianship.

I compliment the 2003 ND Legislative Session for passing the study resolution SCR
4008, and the Legislative Council for choosing to study the issue. | also compliment the
Interim Criminal Justice Committee for developing this legisiation, for their overwhelming
support, and for their willingness to work so closely with the state Guardianship Coalition in
jointly addressing guardianship needs in North Dakota.

The most vulnerable populations are “mentally incapacitated” individuals who are
elderly, are chronically mentally ill, or who have experienced a traumatic brain injury. The DD
population generally are served by the state through contracted guardianships.

Let me give you an example: An elderly lady, low income with no immediate family, is
living in her own apartment. She now has moderate Alzheimer’s disease, and this has
progressed to the point where she is not mentally able to take care of herself, or her home.
Her home is becoming a risk to the health and safety of herself and other building residents.
She is not able to manage her own finances, and has given away some funds. She is not
applying for needed services, nor seeing a doctor, so her other health problems are increasing.
But she still believes she is doing just fine, which is typical of people with dementias. It is
possible that with a guardian authorized to make sure she iegally applies for and receives
essential services, she could function at a lesser costly level of care for a period of time. Often
the guardianship is the missing link along the continuum of home and community-based
services.

Because she has very limited finances, there may be no resources to pay for the costs
of a guardianship process, or to pay a guardian a nominal fee to manage her affairs. Even if
there were resources available, if she has no family member or friend willing to step forward to
serve as her guardian, there may be no agency or interested guardians available. And even If
she had a relative willing to step forward and serve as her guardian, that relative may not fully
understand the responsibilities of a guardian, which could include managing her finances, legal
affairs, living arrangements, medical care, any nursing home placement, mental health service
needs, and other areas. We support the use of trained volunteer guardians, when possible.

i Another example of a person who often falls between the cracks is a chronically
mentally ill or brain-injured person who has limited resources and no interested family
members. Sometimes these individuals have exhausted any willing family support because of
their long-term serious mental iliness or behavior problems, and may need an outside party to
make sure they legally apply for and get essential services, which may help keep them out of
institutional settings, or hospitals.

‘ I'urge you to give a “do pass” to SB 2028, so that these mentally incapacitated
individuals, generally through no fault of their own, may receive essential guardianship
services. | would be happy to answer any questions.




hﬂ St. Alexius Medical Center

®

PrimeCare

The St. Alexius Eldercare Program has considered needs for guardianship services in North
Dakota to be considered during the 2005 Legislative Session;

WHEREAS, the establishment and oversight of guardianship services is essential for the well-
being of vulnerable adults in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a guardianship task force and interim legislative committee have studied the issues
related to guardianship services and propose the establishment of a public guardianship program

in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a need exists for the expansion of guardianship services to afford protection for
vulnerable adults in need of protective services, including many older adults I work with; and

WHEREAS, the St. Alexius Eldercare Program has observed that guardianship proceedings have
not been initiated at times where needed due to lack of financial resources and because an

identifiable entity does not exist to initiate guardianship proceedings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the St. Alexius Eldercare Program hereby
endorses the concept of a public guardianship program in the State of North Dakota, and
requests that the 59 Legislative Assembly of North Dakota give favorable consideration to
proposed legislation to establish a public guardianship program in the State of North Dakota.

by Rodgér W. Wetzel, Dire&for

“Ler all be received as Christ”

900 East Broadway * PO Box 5510 » Bismarck, ND 58506-5510
Tel. 701.530.7000 - Fax 701.530.8984 « TDD 701.530.5555 « www.st.alexius.org
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(Representatives have been/will be requested from these organizations/constituencies -
some have requested to be kept informed, but cannot serve at this time)

ND Legislators

ND Supreme Court

ND Attorney General’s Office
Guardianship Association of ND
Catholic Charities/Catholic Family Services
ND Bar Association

ND Protection and Advocacy Program
Legal Assistance of ND

District Attorneys Association

District Judges Association

Mental Health Association of ND
Traumatic Brain Injury Association
Aging Services Division of NDDHS
Mental Health Division of NDDHS
AARP

Partners in Guardianship

NDLTC Association
Neuropsychologists Association

ND State Hospital

ND Medical Association

A current guardian

A current court visitor

A current attorney active in guardianships
Others - as interested
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Good morning, Chairman Traynor and committee members. My name is Donna Byzewski
and I am co-chair with Rodger Wetzel of the North Dakota Guardianship Task Force. [am
also supervisor of the Guardianship Division at Catholic Charities North Dakota (CCND).
Our agency has been providing corporate guardianship services since 1986. Currently,

CCND serves as guardian for more than 350 people with developmental disabilities.

From August 20b3 to August 2004, the North Dakota Guardianship Task Force worked
closely with the Interim Criminal Justice Committee as it studied the status of guardianship
services in North Dakota. The Task Force is made up of over twenty-five (25) organizations
or individuals who have expertise and extensive experience in the area of guardianship.

The Task Force strongly supported this study because of the gap in the availability of
guardianship services for people with mental illness, vulnerable elderly individuals and
persons with traumatic brain injuries. Based on the frequent requests for services from our
agency and other guardianship programs and the findings of the survey completed for the
Interim Criminal Justice Committee, there are a number of people with diminished capacity
who are experiencing life threatening situations, medical emergencies, abuse or neglect

issues, psychiatric difficulties, financial exploitation and the need for appropriate

- housing/residential services. These are very vulnerable people who are at tremendous risk

because they do not have the safety net of a guardian.

Guardianship should be pursued only when alternative resources such as homemaker
services, representative payee for social security benefits, social service support, residential
placements, in-home services, etc., have been tried but are unsuccessful or not appfopriate
given the circumstances. A guardianship is established because the court has determined
that the person is at significant risk because his or her ability to make responsible decisions
is compromised. Guardianship is very intrusive and should only be used as a last resort

because it involves taking some or all rights away from the individual and giving them to the

guardian.




Once appointed, the guardian has the duty and responsibility to make very difficult decisions
on behalf of the ward. The following are some examples of decisions that guardians
frequently face: whether to move a person out of his or her home becausé of a decline in
health; should chemotherapy be tried or not; do the risks outweigh the benefits of trying a
new psychiatric drug that offers hope but possible severe side effects; how to take away a

person’s checkbook because of thousands of dollars in bills and overdrafis but still maintain

- that person’s dignity; if an individual with Alzheimer’s disease can no longer eat, should a

feeding tube be inserted in the stomach; should a person receive CPR if their heart or
breathing arrests; etc. A guardian must be available 24 hours a day, 365 days per year, to

problem solve or provide consent.

There are a number of indigent, vulnerable people in North Dakota and this bill offers them
a safety net as well as a chance for a better life. The appropriation of $772, 550 makes it
possible for the Department of Human Services to contract with an entity to develop a
comprehensive service system that is truly needed. The Task Force put much energy and
time into developing an accurate budget of how the appropriation could'be utilized. One of
the most integral parts of this legislation is providing day-to-day, direct guardianship
services for up to 210 individuals at a cost of $350,000. The daily rate for the provision of
guardianship services for each ward is $5.00. Given the depth of responsibility that a
guardian has, I can honestly Say that the $5.00 per ward/per day is money well spent.
Because this bill is directed towards meeting the needs of indigent vulnerable people, the
appropriation also includes an expenditure of $135,000 for petitioning costs. To establish a
guardianship, the services of two (2) attorneys and a court visitor are required and this
typically costs about $1,000. In addition, the appropriation includes the expenditure of
$40,000 to fund two essential components: training of volunteer guardians as well as
already established guardians and the development of formalized standards of practice for

guardians. The bill also includes an expenditure of $247,000 toward administrative costs

* that the entity, with which DHS contracts, would incur.

In closing, passage of this bill will have an immediate and positive impact on the lives of
people who are at risk of harm and need the support of a guardian. On behalf of the Task
Force, I am respectfully asking each of you to support SB 2028 by making a “Do Pass”

recommendation. I would welcome any questions that you may have. Thank you!




’ 2 YEAR BUDGET

ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS: * $247,000
Salaries, wages, benefits @33% $192,000
2-3 employees
Rent 12,000
Telephone 3,000
Internet services (web) 2,000
Office equipment 4,000
Supplies 6,000
Travel 10,000
Fees, memberships, in-house training 3,000
Professional services 2,000
Insurance 12,000
Miscellaneous 1000

* Thus allocation is to cover 2 to 3 FTEs: a director
and up to 2 support staff. The amount is expected to
cover all basic administrative and staff costs. The duties
and responsibilities of this entity will be clearly defined

RFP.

TRAINING AND STANDARDS: ** 40,000
Standards development 15,000
Training 25,000

** The $15,000 portion will be used to develop the
standards which will be formalized, adopted, and
utilized on a statewide basis. The $25,000 portion is
to be used over the biennium to provide training to
new and already established guardians. This will also
be used to recruit, screen, and train new volunteers.

COURT COSTS:**=* 135,000
Petitioning Attorney @ $450 per case
Guardian Ad Litem @ $350 per case
Court Visitor @ $200 per case

*¥* The funds in this category will be used to pay the
costs of establishing 126 new guardianships over the
biennium at a rate of $1000.00 per case. Funds in excess
of the cost to establish the new cases, are expected to

be used for appeals and contested guardianships.




.
.’ GUARDIANSHIP SERVICES: **** 350,550 .

**%* Thege funds will be used to pay for the provision
of guardianship services. This amount was created
utilizing a gradual accumulation of individuals
beginning at 10 and increasing by 10 each month
for the fina! 21 months of the biennium. Ninety
days were set aside to allow for program start-up
time. It is estimated that at least 210 individuals
will be served and services paid for at a rate of
$5.00 per day.

TOTAL COST FOR BIENNIUM: $772,550




Senate Judiciary Committee
Testimony of Bill Chaussee, Administrator
Guardian and Protective Services, Inc.
in Support of Senate Bill No. 2028

January 10, 2005

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

My name is Bill Chaussee, administrator of Guardian and Protective
Services, Inc. | am also a past president of the Guardianship Association of
North Dakota and a board member of the National Guardianship Association. |

8

appear before you in support of Senate Bill No. 2028.

Guardian and Protective Services, Inc. (GaP$S), a non profit corporation, has
offices in Bismafck and Fargo. Our agency provides protective arrangements to
vulnerable adults who are unable to secure services through family members,
agencies, or other interested parties. These protective arrangements include
powers of attorney for health care and/or finances, representative payee, and
when necessary, guardianship. The people we serve are elderly, severely
mentally ill and traumatic brain injured with complex problems, making it difficult
to find family members or volunteers to serve. GaPS services help reduce
homelessness, sélf-negtect, financial exploitation and ensure proper medical

treatment and asset management.
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January 10, 2005
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GaPS receives referrals from families, concemed neighbors and friends, human
service centers, home care agencies, county social services, hospitals, senior

centers, banks, attorneys, and courts. We are presently providing services to

over 350 individuals in the Bismarck and Fargo areas.

Funding for our Program is received from cases with the ébilify to pay, grants,
donations, limited county funds, and United Way. The number of “low income”
individuals that we are assisting far exceed those with ability to pay. While,
sixty-five percent of our funds are received from “paid cases’, almost sixty-five

percent of people we serve are determired to be “low income”.

Establishing funding sources for guardianship and alternatives to guardianship is
a major concern as we are exhausting our grant resources and there is a

tremendous need for guardians for low income vulnerable aduits.

We request your support of this Senate Bill No. 2028.

Bill Chaussee, Administrator
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Excerpts from 2005 Interim Criminal Justice Report for Senate Bill Nos. 2028, 2029, and
2030.

GUARDIANSHIP SERVICES STUDY

The committee received testimony and information from a number of individuals and agencies
involved in the area of guardianships and the need for guardianship services in the state. The
committee also received extensive information from the North Dakota Guardianship Task Force,
a group made up of representation from the Department of Human Services, the North Dakota
Long Term Care Association, the State Bar Association of North Dakota, the Protection and
Advocacy Project, the State Hospital, and numerous guardianship service provider organizations.
The task force provided to the committee information regarding community education,
petitioning and hearing, resources, guardians, court visitors, indigent individuals in need of
guardians, and legislation. The committee's considerations focused on two issues—the
guardianship services needs in the state and procedural guardianship issues.

Guardianship Services Needs in the State

The committee received extensive information and testimony from the North Dakota
Guardianship Task Force regarding the guardianship services needs in the state. According to the
testimony, the Legislative Assembly has enacted a number of significant changes to the state's
guardianship laws over the past 16 years, including separating guardianship law from
conservatorship law, allowing for limited guardianships, changing the burden of proof from a
preponderance of the evidence to clear and convincing evidence, changing the law relating to
capacity versus incompetence, and requiring that alternative resource plans be considered. It was
noted that the Legislative Assembly rejected the new changes to the Uniform Probate Code that
dealt with guardianship in part because it was believed current North Dakota law was better than
the proposed revisions to the Uniform Probate Code.

Guardianship, which is a court-appointed relationship between a competent adult and an
individual who is not able to handle the individual's affairs, is not an automatic process. The
testimony stressed that each individual's situation must be considered carefully and completely.
A guardian is required to act in and represent the best interests of the ward, protect the ward and
the ward's rights, and ensure that services are provided in the most normal and least restrictive
means possible. According to the testimony, much of a guardian's time is spent talking with
physicians, case managers, social workers, pastors, family members, or police officers on behalf
of wards. It was noted that guardianship should be pursued only when alternative resources such
as homemaker services, a representative payee for Social Security benefits, social services
support, residential placements, and in-home services have been tried but are unsuccessful or not
appropriate given the circumstances. According to the testimony, a guardian often must make
very difficult decisions on behalf of a ward. It was noted that most wards do not have assets.
Some wards have Social Security benefits or veterans' benefits that can be used but most are
indigent.



The committee also received testimony that there are no statutory standards regarding the
qualifications of guardians other than a guardian must be 18 years of age and competent. It was
noted that Catholic Charities North Dakota, which is the only organization in the state providing
corporate guardianship services, does have policies regarding the qualifications of guardians it
hires. It was stressed that there is a need to develop statewide standards for guardians.

The committee received the results of a survey conducted by the North Dakota Guardianship
Task Force. The purpose of the survey, which was conducted in early January 2004, was to help
determine the need, standards and practices, and funding issues regarding guardianship services
in the state. The task force received 141 responses to the survey and categories of respondents
included family members, the legal profession, and social services. With respect to the issue of
need, 57 percent of the respondents indicated guardianship needs for the populations served are
not adequate and 50 percent of the respondents indicated it is difficult to find individuals who are
willing to serve as guardians. The results indicated that family members are typically the first
choice for guardians, but when a family member is not available, a public administrator assigned
by a judge becomes the guardian. It was noted that a number of courts do not have a public
administrator. The survey results also indicated that approximately 22 percent of the respondents
indicated family members are generally not willing or able to serve as guardians. It was noted
that as anticipated, over half of the survey respondents indicated they are seeing changes in the
population needing guardianship services. Those changes are most identifiable in the elderly
population, followed by individuals with mental illness, physical disabilities, and head and brain
injuries. With regard to standards and practices for guardianship, approximately 25 percent of the
respondents indicated they do not have an adequate knowledge of guardianship and the
guardianship process and when asked if they have experienced any barriers or problems
accessing or working with the legal system for guardianship, 35 percent indicated "yes" with the
majority citing lack of funds and length of time for the process as barriers. Eighty-three percent
of the respondents indicated that there should be minimum standards for individuals serving as
guardians. The survey results also indicated the need for guardians to be serving in the best
interests of the wards, citing accountability, knowledge of expectations, and to ensure and protect
consumer rights and assets as important. Regarding the funding of guardianship services in the
state, the survey results indicated that the ward or the ward's family pays for the legal costs of
establishing the guardianship; however, when resources are not available, the guardianship
establishment costs are being paid by pro bono services, state agencies, counties, the State
Hospital, legal aid, nursing homes, charitable organizations, and the petitioner. It was noted that
many respondents indicated that if resources are not available, the court is not petitioned and a
guardian is not appointed.

To address the issues raised in the testimony regarding the need for guardianship services in the

state, the committee considered a bill draft that required the Department of Human Services to
contract with an entity to create and coordinate a unified system for the provision of guardianship
services to vulnerable adults who are ineligible for developmental disabilities case management
services. The system would be required to include a base unit funding level, provider standards,
staff competency requirements, an emergency funding procedure to cover the costs of
establishing needed guardianships, and guardians and training for guardians. The bill draft also
provided for an appropriation of $772,550. Testimony in explanation of the bill draft indicated
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that the appropriation amount included $247,000 for administrative costs, $40,000 for training
and standards, $135,000 for court costs, and $350,000 for guardianship services.

According to the testimony in support of the bill draft, $772,550 is the minimum amount needed
to provide training to guardians and guardianship services to 210 needy persons. The testimony
indicated that the bill draft would provide guardianship services for those persons who are
vulnerable but who are not developmentally disabled. The testimony further indicated that the
rules that would be developed would include financial eligibility criteria. The appropriation
would pay for guardianship services for an individual at a rate of $5 per day. The services a
guardian provides for $5 per day include making legal decisions, securing housing, making
health care decisions, and completing applications for services. The estimate that 210 individuals
are in need of guardianship services is based upon the guardianship task force survey. Although
Catholic Charities North Dakota is the only organization in the state providing corporate
guardianship services, the bill draft would allow for organizations other than Catholic Charities
North Dakota to contract with the Department of Human Services for the guardianship services.

Procedural Guardianship Issues

During the course of the committee's study of guardiaxiship services needs issues, several issues
were raised regarding the guardianship process, including the procedure for the appointment of a
successor guardian and the filing of annual reports by guardians and conservators.

Regarding the appointment of a successor guardian, the committee received testimony that state
law does not provide for a procedure for the appointment of a successor guardian. There are
frequently instances in which the appointment of a successor guardian is necessary, such as the
death or resignation of a guardian. It was noted that the procedure for the appointment of a
successor guardian is not the same as the procedure for the creation of the guardianship. When
naming a successor guardian, there is not a need to repeat the entire guardianship proceeding
because the determination that a guardian is necessary has already been made and therefore that
part of the process does not need to be repeated for the appointment of a successor. The
testimony indicated that a parent or guardian may name a successor guardian in a will or a
coguardian may have been appointed at the time the guardianship was initially created.
Testimony received from an attorney who practices in the area of guardianship law indicated that
the procedures used by attorneys for the appointment of a successor guardian meet the
requirements of guardianship statutes; however, it would be helpful if the statutes specifically
provided for the appointment of successor guardians.

The committee considered a bill draft that established a procedure for the current guardian or any
interested person to file a motion with the court for the appointment of a successor guardian. The
bill draft provided that the notice of motion must include a statement that provides an
opportunity for hearing, if requested. If a hearing is not requested, the court may appoint a
successor guardian. It was noted that the procedure in the bill draft follows the procedure set
forth in the North Dakota Rules of Court Rule 3.2. This rule provides for a motion accompanied
by a brief and an affidavit signed by the existing guardian or someone with knowledge of the
reasons a successor guardian is needed. The bill draft also contained a provision that provided if
the guardian is a public administrator or a corporate guardian that serves more than 10 wards, the
guardian is permitted to provide notice by publishing the motion and the notice of motion in a
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newspaper of general circulation within the judicial district in which the court is located. Because
- of concerns that publication of a motion regarding the appointment of a successor guardian is a
shortcut and a departure from statutory notice requirements, the bill draft was amended to
provide that the motion and the notice of motion for a public administrator or a corporate
guardian with more than 10 wards may be served by first-class mail.

Testimony in support of the bill draft indicated that the bill draft would be heIpful in prowdmg a
statutory procedure for the appointment of successor guardians. The testimony indicated that the
procedure in the bill draft is the procedure being used by attorneys in the state for the
appointment of successor guardians. It was noted that although the procedure in subsection 4 of
the bill draft is a departure from current statute, it is economical and at the same time protects the -
rights of individual wards. It was also noted that less than 10 percent of all successor

guardianship appointments are contested. Other testimony indicated that because it is now

possible to serve notice by fax and e-mail, al]owmg service by first-class mml is a satxsfactory
option.

Testimony in opposition to the bill draft expressed concemn about the method of service provided
for in subsection 4 of the bill draft. According to the testimony, the method of service—first-class -
mail--affects the due process of a ward if the ward's guardian has 10 or more wards. It was
argued that this change would treat a ward with a corporate guardian differently than a ward with -
a private-party guardian. It was also argued that because wards of corporate guardians are often’
members of groups with specific disabilities, to treat such individuals differently than those with
private guardians could create a perception of discrimination.

The committee also received testimony regarding the reporting requirements of guardians and -
conservators. According to the testimony, in about 99 percent of guardianship and
conservatorship cases, the court requires an annual report, however, the requirement is not
statutory. In addition, the testlmony indicated that each judge has different practices for the filing
and approval of reports causing a lack of predictability in the current system.

The committee considered a bill draft that provided for an annual report reqmrement for
guardians and conservators. The bill draft also required the State Court Administrator's office to
develop and provide a form that may be used to fulfill reporting requirements.

Testimony in support of the bill draft indicated that the bill draft would make it clear that the
filing of an annual report is not the same as court approval of the report. It was noted that the bill
draft makes it clear that court approval requires notice. |

Testunony from the State Court Administrator's office mdlcated that the Council of Presiding
Judges has not been satisfied with the handling of annual reports. It was noted that this bill draft
is an attempt to clanfy the procedure and provide direction to judges. According to the testimony,
the judiciary is in agreement with moving forward with this idea. It was also noted that a
standardized form would give information to the judges in a uniform format and make it easier to
spot irregularities. :




One committee member expressed concern that there has not been any harm identified which
creates a need for this legislation. It was noted that requiring annual reports would take judicial
discretion out of the process.

Recommendations

The committee recommends Senate Bill No. 2028 to require the Department of Human Services
to contract with an entity to create and coordinate a unified system for the provision of
guardianship services to vulnerable adults who are ineligible for developmental disabilities case
management services. The system is required to include a base unit funding level, provider
standards, staff competency requirements, the use of an emergency funding procedure to cover
the costs of establishing needed guardianships, and guardians and training for guardians. The bill -
also provides for an appropriation of $772,550. '

The committee recommends Senate Bill No. 2029 to establish a procedure for the current
guardian or any interested person to file a motion with the court for the appointment of a
successor guardian. ' ' '

The committee recommends Senate Bill No. 2030 to provide for an annual report requirement for
guardians and conservators. The bill draft also requires the State Court Administrator's office to
develop and provide a form that may be used to fulfill reporting requirements.
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Brain Injury Association of North Dakota
209 Second Street Southeast
Valley City, North Dakota 58072

Phone 701-845-1124
Fax 701-845-1175

The Brain Injury Association of North Dakota considers proposed changes
affecting guardianship services in North Dakota to be considered during the

2005 Legislative Session;

WHEREAS, the establishment and oversight of guardianship services is
essential for the well-being of vulnerable adults in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a guardianship task force and interim legislative committee
have studied the issues related to guardianship services and propose the
establishment of a public guardianship program in North Dakota as a tool to
maximize community integration and used following all exploration of
surrogate decision making instruments; an

WHEREAS:; the Brain Injury Association of North Dakota has observed that
guardianship proceedings have at times where needed due to lack of
financial resources and because an identifiable entity does not exist to
initiate guardianship proceedings;

NOW THERE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Brain Injury Association of
North Dakota by a vote of its membership on January 7, 2005, hereby
endorses the concept of a public guardianship program in the State of North
Dakota and request that the 59™ Legislative Assembly of North Dakota,
which will convene January 2005 give favorable consideration to proposed
legislation to establish a public guardianship program in the State of North

Dakota
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TESTIMONY
SB 2028 - JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
SENATOR J.TRAYNOR, CHAIRMAN

JANUARY 10, 2005

Chairman Traynor, members of the Senate Judiciary Committee, | am
JoAnne Hoesel, Director of the Division of Mental Health & Substance
Abuse for the Department of Human Services. | am here today to provide
information regarding the guardianship bill.

The Department of Human Services supports the concepts of this
legislation but is unable to support the bill, as the funding is not within the
executive budget. [ am here to acknowledge that there are situations where
vulnerable adults are in need of guardianship services and have no
options, These situations can occur when an adult is unable to make
appropriate decisions in financial or health care situations whether due to
the aging process or mental illness. When guardianship is not available it
increases a person’s vulnerability to losing their independence. The only
for;mal guardianship program in place is available to individuals who have a
developmental disability. The Aging Services Division is able, in a few
situations, to pay for the initial court costs of guardianship but does not
have funding for ongoing guardianship services. There is no program for

those with a mental iliness in need of this service.

The Department applauds the involvement of the broad-based group that

has worked closely over many years to address this area of concern.

Thank you.
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5. This section does not apply to any portion of a lump sum payment that must be paid
to satisfy an income withholding order issued under section 14-09-09.15.

14-09-10. Reciprocal duty of support - Support of poor. It is the duty of the father,
the mother, and every child of any person who is unable to support oneself, to maintain that
person to the extent of the ability of each. This liability may be enforced by any person furnishing
necessaries to the person. The promise of an adult child to pay for necessaries fumnished to the
child's parent is binding.

14-09-11. Allowance to parent for support of child. The district court may direct an
allowance to be made to a parent of a child out of its property for its past or future support and
education on such conditions as may be proper, whenever such direction is for its benefit.

14-09-12. Support by county - Liability of parent's estate. if a parent chargeable with
the support of a child dies leaving it chargeable upon the county and leaving an estate sufficient
for its support, the board of county commissioners of the county, in the name of the county, may
claim provision for its support from the parent's estate by civil action, and for this purpose may
have the same remedies as any creditor against that estate and against the heirs, devisees, and
next of kin of the parent.

14-09-13. Neglect of child - Parent liable to third person. If a parent neglects to
provide articles necessary for that parent's child who is under that parent's charge, according to
that parent's circumstances, a third person in good faith may supply such necessaries and
recover the reasonable value thereof from the parent.

14-09-14. When parent not liable for support of child. Repealed by S.L. 1999,
ch. 141, § 25.

14-09-15. Support of children after majority. When a child, after attaining majority,r
continues to serve and to be supported by the parent, neither party is entitled to compensation in
the absence of an agreement therefor.

14-09-16. Control of property of child. The parent, as such, has no control over the
property of the child.

14-09-17. Child's earnings - Relinquished by parent. The parent, whether solvent or
insolvent, may relinquish to the child the right of controlling the child and receiving the child's
earnings. Abandonment by the parent is presumptive evidence of such relinquishment.

14-09-18. Wages of minors. The wages of a minor employed in service may be paid to
the minor until the parent or guardian entitied thereto gives the employer notice that the parent or
guardian claims such wages.

14-09-19. Parental abuse. The abuse of parental authority is the subject of judicial
cognizance in a civil action in the district court brought by the child, or by its relatives within the
third degree, or by the county social service board of the county where the child resides, and
when the abuse is established the child may be freed from the dominion of the parent and the
duty of support and education may be enforced.

14-09-20. When parent's authority ceases. The authority of a parent ceases:

1. Upon the appointment by a court of a guardian of the person of a child;

2. Upon the marriage of a child; or

3. Upon its attaining majority.

14-09-21. Parent and child not liable for acts of other. Neither parent nor child is
answerable as such for the act of the other.
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RESOLUTION

The North Dakota Judicial Conference, at its biannual meetincj of November
23, 2004, considered proposed changes affecting guardianship services in North
Dakota to be considered during the 2005 Legislative Session;

WHEREAS, the establishment and oversight of guardianship services is within
the jurisdiction of the district court in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a guardianship task force and interim legislative committee have
studied the issues related to guardianship services and propose the establishment
of a public guardianship program in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a need exists for the expansion of guardianship services to afford
protection for vulnerable aduits in need of protective services; and

WHEREAS, the court system has observed that guardianship proceedings
have not been initiated at times where needed due to lack of financial resources and
because an identifiable entity does not exist to initiate guardianship proceedings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the North Dakota Judicial
Conference, by a vote of its membership, hereby endorses the concept of a public
guardianship program in the State of North Dakota, and requests that the 59th
Legisiative Assembly of North Dakota, which will convene in January 2005, give
favorable consideration to proposed legislation to establish a public guardianship
program for the State of North Dakota.

ADOPTED this 2

ber, 2004.

4 . Ly —
John Paylsgn, Chair -
!North D Judicidl Conference

Ted G‘?a_d/den, Secretary
North Dakota Judicial Conference
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North Dakota

December 21, 2004

Donna Byzewski, Co-Chair

Rodger Wetzel, Co-Chair

North Dakota Guardianship Work Group
PO Box 2264

Bismarck ND 58502

AARP North Dakota has reviewed proposed changes affecting guardianship services in North
Dakota o be considered during the 2005 legislative session. The proposed changes are
consistent with our national policy which states in part.

sstates should efther establish a public guardianship program to provide free or nominal-cost
uardian or conservator services for needy elderly people who cannot be represented by
‘uaﬁﬁed relatives or others, or permit the establishment of such programs by volunteer, for-
profit or nonprofit organizations. States should require that these programs meat certain
standards and be licensed or certified before and during the performance of their
responsibilities. At a minimum the standards should limit the number of wards served, require
adequate liability insurance for the protection of the wards and their property, and set

mandatory conflict-of-interest standards.™

In the interest of our most vulnerable citizens we encourage your favorable consideration.

Sincerely,

. /1
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Betty K ;egan'; 8{_;te President ,-""Janis,'g Cheney, State Direbtor‘_w,,—/
AARP North Dakota . - | AARP North Dakota. |
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North Dakota
ssociation for the
Disabled, Inc.

The North Dakota Association for the Disabled, Inc. considers proposed changes
affecting guardianship services in North Dakota to be considered during the 2003
Legislative Session,

WHEREAS, the establishment and oversight of guardianship services is essential for the
well-being of vulnerable adults in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a guardianship task force and interim legislative committee have studied the
issues related to guardianship services and propose the establishment of a public
guardianship program in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a need exists for the expansion of guardianship services to afford protection
for vulnerable adults in need of protective services, and

WHEREAS, The North Dakota Association for the Disabled, Inc. has observed that
guardianship proceedings have not been initiated at times where needed due to lack of
financial resources and because an identifiable entity does not exist to initiate
guardianship proceedings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the North Dakota Association for the
Disabled, Inc. by a vote of its membership, hereby endorses the concept of a public
guardianship program in the State of North Dakota, and request that the 59" Legislative
Assembly of North Dakota, which will convene in January 2005, give favorable
consideration to proposed legislation to establish a public guardianship program for the
State of North Dakota.

Adopted this A7 __ day of December, 2004.
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- *A CHARITABLE NON-PROHT ORGANIZATION”
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ronald Gibbens Mark Lysne' Wendell Grondahl Darrell Farland - Mike Berg Bob Mongeon Anne Putbrese
President Vice-President  Secretary/Treasurer Director Director Director Director




RESOLUTION

Catholic Charities North Dakota has considered proposed changes
affecting guardianship services in North Dakota to be considered during the
2005 Legislative Session, -

WHEREAS, the establishment and oversight of guardianship services
is essential to the well being of vulnerable adults in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a guardianship task force and interim legislative
committee have studied the issues related to guardianship services and
propose the establishment of a public guardianship program in North
Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a need exists for the expansion of guardianship services
to afford protection for vulnerable adults in need of protective services; and

WHEREAS, Catholic Charities North Dakota has observed that
guardianship proceedings have not been initiated at times where needed due
to lack of financial resources and because an identifiable entity does not
exist to initiate guardianship proceedings; :

. NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that Catholic Charities
North Dakota by a vote of its Board of Directors endorses the concept of a
public guard1ansh1p program in the State of North Dakota, and requests that
the 59" Legislative Assembly of North Dakota, which will convene in
January 2005, give favorable consideration to proposed legislation to
establish as well as fund a public guard1ansh1p program for the State of
| North Dakota.

ADOPTED this 5% day of January, 2005,

President
Catholic Charities North Dakota




RESOLUTION

The Guardianship Association of North Dakota has considered
proposed changes affecting guardianship services in North Dakota to be
considered during the 2005 Legislative Session.

WHEREAS, the establishment and oversight of guardianship services
is essential to the well being of vulnerable adults in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a guardianship task force and interim legislative
commitiee have studied the issues related to guardianship services and
propose the establishment of a public guardianship plogram in North
Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a need exists for the expansion of guardianship services
to afford protection for vulnerable adults in need of protective services; and

WHEREAS, the Guardianship Association of North Dakota has
observed that guardianship proceedings have not been initiated at times
where needed due to lack of financial resources and because an identifiable
entity does not exist to initiate guardianship proceedings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Guardianship
Association of North Dakota by a vote of its Board of Directors endorses the
concept of a public guardianship program in the State of North Dakota, and
requests that the 59" Legislative Assembly of North Dakota, which will
convene in January 2005, give favorable consideration to proposed
legislation to establish a public guardianship program for the State of North
Dakota.

: Ko
ADOPTED this 44 day of December, 2004.

/@mﬁ @a@m@

President
Guardianship Assoc1at1on of Notth Dakota




Partners, Inc.
3130 Nevada Street
Bismarck, ND 58503
701-799-2469

Having reviewed the proposed changes affecting guardianship services in North Dakota
to be considered during the 2005 Legislative Session;

WHEREAS, the establishment and oversight of guardianship services 1s essential for the
well-being of vulnerable adults in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a guardianship task force and interim legislative committee have studied
the issues related to guardianship services and propose the establishment of a public
guardianship program in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a need exists for the expansion of guardianship services to provide
appropriate protection to vulnerable adults in need of protective services; and

WHEREAS, Partners, Inc. has observed that guardianship proceedings have not been
initiated at, times where needed due to lack of financial resources and because an

identifiable entity does not exist to initiate guardianship proceedings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT .RESOLVED that the Partners, Inc hereby endorses the

~ concept of a public guardianship program in the State of North Dakota, and requests that

the 59™ Legislative Assembly of North Dakota, which will convene in January 2005, give
favorable consideration to proposed legislation to establish a public guardianship

_program in the State of North Dakota.

"aul T. Griffin, Board President
Partners, Inc.
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. GUARDIAN ano PROTECTIVE SERVICES, INC.

Guardian and Protective Services, Inc. considers proposed changes affecting
guardianship services in North Dakota to be considered during the 2005 Legislative
Session;

WHEREAS, the establishment and oversight of guardianship services is essential for the
well-being of vulnerable adults in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a guardianship task force and interim legislative committee have studied the
issues related to guardianship services and propose the establishment of a public
guardianship program in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a need exists for the expansion of guardianship services to afford protection
for vulnerable adults in need of protective services; and

WHEREAS, Guardian and Protective Services has observed that guardianship
proceedings have not been initiated at times where needed due to lack of financial

resources and because an identifiable entity does not exist to initiate guardianship
proceedings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Guardian and Protective Services, Inc.
hereby endorses the concept of a public guardianship program in the State of North
Dakota, and request that the 59" Legislative Assembly of North Dakota, which will
convene in January 2005, give favorable consideration to proposed legislation to establish
a public guardianship program in the State of North Dakota.
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William Chaussee, Administrator Date
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North Dakota §
. ssociation for the

Disabled, Inc.

The North Dakota Association for the Disabled, Inc. considers proposed changes
affecting guardianship services ‘1 North Dakota to be considered during the 2005
Legislative Session,

WHEREAS, the establishment and oversight of guardianship services is essential for the
well-being of vulnerable adults in North Dakota; and

WHEREAS, a guardianship task force and interim legislative committee have studied the
issues related to guardianship services and propose the establishment of a public
cuardianship program in North Dakota; and

. WIIEREAS, a need exists for the expansion of guardianship services to afford protection
for vulnerable adults in need of protective services; and

WHEREAS, The North Dakota Association for the Disabled, Inc. has observed that
onardianship proceedings have not been initiated at times where needed due to lack of

financial resources and because an identifiable entity does not exist to initiate
guardianship proceedings;

NOW, THEREFORE, BEIT RESOLVED that the North Dakota Association for the
Disabled, Inc. by a vote of its membership, hereby endorses the concept of a public
guardianship program in the State of North Dakota, and request that the 59" Legislative
Assembly of North Dakota, which will convene in January 2005, give favorable
consideration to proposed legislation to establish a public guardianship program for the
State of North Dakota.

Adopted this day of December, 2004,
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To: Senate Judiciary Committee

From: Christopher T. Dodson, Executive Director

Subject: Senate Bill 2028 (To Provide a Guardianship Services System)
Date: January 10, 2005

The North Dakota Catholic Conference supports Senate Bill 2028 to provide a
guardianship services system in North Dakota.

Others have or will testify to the specific need for such a system. A
guardianship task force and interim legislative committee have studied the
issues related to guardianship services and concluded that a need exists to
expand guardianship services to afford protection for vulnerable adults. This
conclusion is supported by the Catholic Church in North Dakota, which
through Catholic Charities of North Dakota, is one of the entities that
currently provides guardianship services.

It is not, however, our experience alone that draws our support for this bill.
One of the Ten Commandments states: "Honor your father and your mother,
that your days may be long in the land which the Lord your God gives you."
This call to honor the family is also a basis upon which our society is built.

In our brothers and sisters, we see the children of our parents; in our cousins,
the descendants of our ancestors; in our fellow citizens, the children of our
country. In this way, our relationships with our neighbors are recognized as
personal in character. This is why the Old Testament prophets called on
society to care for the orphan, the widow, and the immigrant. These persons,
who in that time were the ones without family and community support, were
to be cared for like family. Guardianship programs continue that call today.
They serve the ones often without family like family, providing needed
assistance and protection.

There is a growing need to care for the vulnerable persons among us in a
manner that respects their dignity and acknowledges their inclusion in the
human family. This bill addresses that need. When we adequately provide
such services, we are all enriched. This is why that commandment is the only
one of the Ten Commandments that contains a promise to those who keep it:
"that your days may be long in the land which the Lord your God gives you."

We urge a Do Pass recommendation on Senate Bill 2028.




TESTIMONY OF Melvin L. Webster IN SUPPORT OF SB 2028

1 am an attorney. I practice in Bismarck, ND. Guardianship is a major area of my
practice. 1 urge the committee to support Senate Bill 2028 and vote “do pass.”

This bill provides a minimal level of funding for guardianship services for persons who
for one reason or another are otherwise unable to access guardianship services.
Sometimes the problem is that the proposed ward or the proposed ward’s family does not
have sufficient funds to pay for the petitioning attorney, the court visitor which must be a
licensed social worker or a registered nurse, and the guardian ad litem for the proposed
ward. '

However, even when pro bono legal services and a qualified, volunteer visitor and
physician are located, no one can be found to serve as the guardian. Since December I
have encountered four such cases. One is currently pending in Burleigh County District
Court. Two sisters are currently serving as the temporary guardians, but they work full
time, have young children, are totally bewildered by the vast array of choices they must
make and applications for various programs such as SSI, housing, medical assistance and
other programs. This is complicated by the fact that the Ward is chronically-mentally ill
and has alicnated her family. Her father is retired and lives in Virginia. He has scraped
together enough to pay for the court process, but he has limited funds and can not afford
to pay for continuing guardianship services after appointment. The local public
administrator is overwhelmed cases in which there are no funds to pay for services
required after appointment. This ward has appeared in district court for various
misdemeanor offenses. She has accessed emergency hospital services at least 3 times in
the last six months. Without a guardian, she will undoubtedly again appear in district
court and utilize local medical services. As I mentioned she is but one of four similar
cases.

There are many instances when there is no appropriate family member. Frequently, when
mental illness is the cause of the disability, family members are estranged from the
proposed ward. Persons who are incapacitated due to mental illness or a traumatic brain
injury are frequently the most difficult wards to serve as they are up and active in the
community. They are cases that simply are beyond the capacity ofa volunteer even a
family member volunteer. You will hear from a volunteer guardian today—Carole
Watrel. But Carole is an exception. Although she is a volunteer, she has extensive
background as a social worker and working with persons who are mentally ill.

This bill, even if full funding were restored, will not provide a Carole Watrel for each
ward but it will provide competent, professional guardianship service for vulnerable
elderly persons, mentally ill persons, and others who are presently unable to access
guardianship. I again urge your support of SB 2028.
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I became the guardian for my ward in October of 2000. She is a middle aged
(50) woman with mental illness. This woman has a large family, a mother &
8 siblings in this area. The family was always arguing as to the care of my
ward. No one in this family wanted to become her guardian because of all
the animosity within the family.

At that time Karen lived in the apartments on the east side for mentally ill.
She would on some days sit in her apartment which she kept darkened most
of the time, all day. She received her meds from a nurse assistant in a lock
down situation. In a lock down situation, the person is watched until she
swallows the medication. Sometimes she would let her mother in the apt, &
sometimes not. It was the same with me. In the evening she would go the
the ER at both hospitals with usually fake illnesses. She just liked the
atmosphere of the ER. This practice, which she did innumerable times ,
did not set well with the ER staff. Over a month period, for instance, she
went to the ER perhaps 50 times, as she would go more that once a day to
both ER’s here in Bismarck. All these visits were billed to the state, of
course, and for fantasy problems.

With the help of a local psychiatrist, & the knowledge that her life situation
could not continue as it was, some changes were made. She was moved to
the Arbor House, a temporary home for the mentally ill, from her apartment
in east Bismarck. She was furious with me for this change. 1, as her guardian
had to appear before a group of social workers and explain my reasons to
them. I was told that if Karen had not had a guardian, this move, for her own
betterment, would not have been possible.

Prior to that I had her tested for possible employment, a drivers license, all
of which proved unworkable & impossible...all this took hours of time on
my part and all this was done on a voluntary basis....anyway Karen, while
acting that she was still furious with me, slowly started to take part in the life
of Arbor House. She likes to cook & clean & soon was able to help in that
capacity & it was easy to notice her change. Her mother couldn’t get over
the difference. After 6 months she had to leave Arbor House as that is the
maximum time one can stay there. She was then moved around the corner to
a duplex house called the Lewis & Clark house, also for the mentally ill.
This was another difficult move for Karen, she doesn’t take change easily.
She was assured she will never have to move again & she won’t have to.
Her family again moved her, & that was about a year and a half ago now.




At the present time Karen does some cooking and cleaning at the home and
is reimbursed as a chore-giver. So she feels like she has a job as is far more
satisfied.

This isn’t to say her life is perfect. It never will be. She has schizophrenia.
She still takes her meds on a lock-down basis. Much of the time she is not
happy and complains, but she is up every day and involved in many
activities of daily living, especially cooking and cleaning. And yes, she still
finds a reason to go to the ER’s, but only once in a while.

If Karen had not had a guardian, she could not have been moved from her
apartment for the mentally ill. But how many persons would take on this
sort of volunteer work? If it were not for 2 men in this room now, who I
really admire, I would not have taken this assignment either. There are not
many volunteers who would be able to handle a case like this.

Thank you. I will be happy to answer any questions.

Carole Watrel, LSW
701-222-4607

Ft Unton Room
2 p.m
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Senate Appropriations Committee - January 24, 2005 &
- Testimony in support of SB 2028 ﬂ 02

-Rodger Wetzel, LSW, MPA/MHA, Eldercare Program Director,
St. Alexius Medical Center, Bismarck, ND

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Committee:

My name is Rodger Wetzel. | am the Director of the Eidercare Program at St. Alexius.

I have been in this position for 19 years. Prior to this position, | was the Assistant Director of
the Aging Services Division of the NDDHS. | also am a member of the Guardianship
Association of ND (GAND), and was elected co-chair of the state Guardianship Task Force
which has been addressing ND guardianship needs.

In the past 33 years | have been directly involved in over 300 guardianships. Most often
I have served as the “court visitor”, the social worker who completes the social assessment of
the client/guardian for the district judge and client prior to the guardianship hearing. | also
have worked with persons with dementia for 19 years.

In North Dakota we do not have a system, and often not even the essential services, if
some of our most vulnerable people, because of mental incapacity, need a guardianship.

| compliment the 2003 ND Legislature for passing study resolution SCR 4008, and the
Legislative Council for choosing this study. | also compliment the Interim Criminai Justice
Committee for introducing this legislation, for their strong support, and for their willingness to
work so closely with the state Guardianship Task Force in addressing guardianship needs. |
also compliment the Senate Judiciary Committee for their recent support for this legisiation.

The very vulnerable populations are “mentally incapacitated” . individuals who are
elderly, are chronically mentally ill, or who have experienced a traumatic brain injury. The
developmentally disabled population generally are served by the state through contracted
guardianships. ‘Our Task Force competed a statewide survey to give us an estimated number
of individuals needing these guardianship services, and this number has been used to
estimate costs in this legislation.

Let me give you a common example | have experienced: An elderly lady, low income
with no immediate family, is living in her own apartment. She has been a good citizen all of her
life. She now has Alzheimer’s disease which has progressed so that she is not mentally able
to take care of herself or her home. Her apartment is becoming a risk to the health and safety
of herself and other building residents. She is not able to manage her own finances, and has
given away some funds. She is not applying for needed services, is not taking a bath or her
meds, and not seeing a doctor, so her other health problems are increasing. But she still
believes she is doing “just fine”, which is typical of peopie with dementias. It is probable that
with a guardian authorized to make sure she applies for and receives essential services, she
could continue to function at home and out of a facility and reduce emergency medical care.
Because she has very limited finances, there are no funds to pay the costs of a guardianship
hearing or to pay a guardian/agency a monthly fee to manage her affairs. Often the
guardianship is necessary first link to home and community-based services, financial
management, and medical care.

If she did have a relative or volunteer willing to step forward and voluntarily serve as
her guardian, that relative may not fully understand the serious responsibilities of being a legal
guardian, which could include managing her finances, legal affairs, living arrangements,
medical care, any nursing home placement, mental health service needs, and other needs.
We do support recruiting and training volunteer guardians, when possible. So there is a need
for basic standards for all guardians and some basic guardianship training also exists, whether
the guardian is a volunteer or receives a fee. These (underlined) needs are addressed in this

bill.

(continued on reverse side)
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Other examples of pecple who often fall between the cracks are chronically mentally ill
or brain-injured persons who have limited resources and no interested family members.
Sometimes these individuals have exhausted any willing family support because of their Jong-
term serious mental illness or continuing behavior problems, and they need an outside party,
such as a guardian, to make sure they apply for needed services, and continue these
services, which may help keep them out of institutional settings or hospitals. Or it may be
determined that they need a guardian when they are discharged. '

| urge you to give a “do pass” to SB 2028, so that all these mentally incapacitated
individuals, generally through no fault of their own, may receive essential guardianship
services, including legal hearings and monthly monitoring. In addition, there would be basic
standards developed for all guardians, and basic guardianship training provided. Another
task force member will address specific cost issues and guardian responsibilities.

This is a very vulnerable population which needs these essential guardianship services.

Thank you! | would be happy to answer any quesﬁons.
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Senate Appropriations Committee
Testimony on Senate Bill 2028
Senator Ray Holmberg, Chairman
January 24, 2005
Good morning, Chairman Holmberg and committee members. My name is Donna -
Byzewski and I am co-chair with Rodger Wetzel of the North Dakota Guardianship Task
Force. Iam also supervisor of the Guardianship Division at Catholic Charities North
Dakota (CCND). Our agency has been providing corporate guardianship services since
1986. Currently, CCND serves as guardian for more than 350 people with developmental

disabilities.

From August 2003 to August 2004, the North Dakota Guardianship Task Force worked
closely with the Interim Criminal Justice Committee as it studied the status of guardianship
services in North Dakota. The Task Force strongly supported this study because of the gap
in the availability of guardianship services for people with mental illness, vulnerable elderly
individuals and persons with traumatic brain injuries. Based on the frequent requests for
services from our agency and other guardianship programs and the findings of the survey
completed for the Interim Criminal Justice Committee, there are a number of people with
diminished capacity who are experiencing life threatening situations, medical emergencies,
abuse or neglect issues, psychiatric difficulties, financial exploitation and the need for
appropriate housing/residential services. A guardianship is established because the court has
determined that the person is at significant risk because his or her ability to make
responsible decisions is compromised. Guardianship is very intrusive and should only be
used as a last resort becaﬁse it in\}plves taking some or all rights away from the individual
and éiving them to the guardian. These are very vulnerable people who are at tremendous

risk because they do not have the safety net of a guardian.

There are a number of indigent, vulnerable people in North Dakota and this bill offers them

a chance for a better life. The appropriation of $772, 550 makes it possible for the
Department of Human Services to contract with an entity to develop a comprehensive
service system that is truly needed. The Task Force put much energy and time into

developing an accurate budget of how the appropriation could be utilized. Today, I would

like to provide a more detailed eiplanation of the different sections of this suggested budget.




Guardianship Services: The most important part of this legislation is providing day-to-day,

direct guardianship services for up to 210 individuals at a cost of $350,550. The rate for the
provisionAQf guardianship services is $5.00 per ward/per day. Once appointed by the court,
the gﬁardian has the duty and responsibility to make very difficult decisions on behalf of the
ward. The following are some examples of decisions that guardians frequently face:
whether to move a person out of his or her home because of a decline in health; should
chemotherapy be tried or not; do the risks outweigh the benefits of trying a new psychiatric
drug that offers hope but possible severe side effects; how to take away a person’s
checkbook because of thousands of dollars in bills and overdrafts but still maintain that
person’s dignity; if an individual with Alzheimer’s disease can no longer eat, should a
feediné tube be inserted in the stomach; should a person receive CPR if his or hér heart or
breathing arrests; etc. A guardian must be available 24 hours a day, 365 days per year, to
problem solve or provide consent. Please keep in mind that these services would only be
available as a.guardian of last resort. The majority of referrals would involve individuals
who have no family members who are available or appropriate to serve as guardian or those
who do have family but have worn them out because of the severity and unpredictability of
their particular disability. Given the depth of responsibility that a guardian has, I can
honesﬂy say that $5.00 per ward/per day is money well spent.

Court Costs: Because this bill is directed towards meeting the needs of indigent, vulnerable
people, the appropriation also includes an expenditure of $135,000 for petitioning costs. To

establish a guardianship, the services of two (2) attorneys (a petitioning attorney and a

~ guardian ad litem) as well as a court visitor and psychologist or physician are required. This

typically costs about $1,000. This is a key portion of this bill and it must go hand in hand
with the above-mentioned guardianship services. Without funding for petitioning costs, a
person would not be able to access the needed day-to-day guardianship services and as a

result remain at risk of harm.

Training and Standards: In addition, the appropriation includes the expendlture of $40,000

to fund two essential components: training of volunteer and already established guardians

and the development of formalized standards of practice for guardians. For those

guardianship cases where the needs are less intense, a volunteer guardian could be a perfect




match, However, it would be too risky to assign a volunteer guardian before the person has
had in-depth training as well as a thorough background check. This training would also be
. available to family members or others who are currently serving as a guardian. The
establishment of standards of practice is an area about which the Task Force felt very
strongly. Having consistent, recognized standards for guardians is critical to help ensure
that persons with diminished capacity are receiving high quality guardiénshjp support. One
thought would be to incorporate standards of practice into North Dakota’s excellent

guardianship law.

Administrative Costs: The two (2) year budget also includes an expenditure of $247,000

toward administrative costs that the entity, with which DHS contracts, would incur. It was
important to the Task Force to include all start up costs, salaries and benefits for a minimum

of two employees (a director and support staff person) and necessary operating costs so that

the recipient of the RFP would have the necessary tools to create and coordinate a unified
guardianship service system for people with mental illness, vulnerable elderly individuals

and persons with a traumatic brain injury.

. In closing, passage of this bill will have an immediate and positive impact on the lives of
people who are at risk of harm and need the support of a guardian. On behalf of the Task
Force, | am respectfully asking each of you to support SB 2028 by making a “Do Pass”

recommendation. [ would welcome any questions that you may have. Thank you!
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House Human Services Committee
Testimony on Senate Bill 2028
Representative Clara Sue Price, Chairman
March 7, 2005

Good afternoon, Madame Chairman Price and committee members. My name is Donna Byzewski
and I am co-chair with Rodger Wetzel of the North Dakota Guardianship Task F orée. I am also
supervisor of the Guardianship Division at Catholic Charities North Dakota (CCND). Our agency
has been providing corporate guardianship services since 1986. Currently, CCND serves as

guardian for more than 350 people with developmental disabilities.

- As a guardian, much of my time is spent talking with physicians, case managers, social workers,

pastors, family members, emergency room personnel or police officers on behalf of my wards.
These conversations frequently provide me with another lesson that guardianship is not an easily
understood concept. Today, I would like to take a few minutes to explain the role and

responsibilities of a guardian so you have a clearer picture of the services that this bill would fund.

Guardianship should be pursued only when alternative resources such as homemaker services, a
representative payee for social security benefits, social service support, residential placements, in-
home services, etc., have been tried but are unsuccessful or not appropriate given the circumstances.
A guardianship is established because the court has determined that the person is at significant risk
because he or she lacks the ability and capacity to make responsible decisions. Guardianship is very
intrusive and should only be used as a last resort because it involves taking away some or all rights

from the individual and giving them to the guardian.

Today, I would like to tell you about one person for whom CCND has served as guardian. Julie
shared an apartment for many years with her boyfriend. When he died, Julie continued to live alone
in her apartment. Soon, county social services began receiving calls from neighbors in the
apartment building because of the awful odors coming from Julie’s apartment. Adult protection
workers visited Julie and found rotting food on the kitchen table and counters, garbage strewn all
over and a few bugs in different areas of the apartment. The adult protection workers also noted _
that Julie did not appear to feel well. Her lower legs were enormous from swelling and she had
difficulty walkmg Over the next few days the workers visited several times and they offered to
arrange a number of different support services for her. She refused all assistance as well as any
medical care. Julie had also fallen behind in paying her bills and the electricity was about to be cut
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off. It became apparent to the workers that with the support of her boyfriend, Julie had been able to
manage quite well as he handled the bills, kept up the apartment and helped her make decisions.
Her boyfriend’s death caused a huge hole in her life and each day resulted in more concerns about

her health and safety.

It was during the fourth visit that the adult protection workers decided to seek an emergency
guardianship because they noticed bugs crawling out of her shoes. When she took off her shoes and
socks, the workers found large open sores with maggots in them. They contacted Julie’s brother and
asked if he would serve as her guardian but he refused. He was worn out from being at the
receiving end of Julie’s anti-social behavior for many years. Within a few hours, an emergency
guardianship was established and CCND was appointed guardian. With guardianship papers in
hand, our guardianship worker went to Julie’s apartment and after an initial assessment, she offered
to take Julie to the hospital. When Julie refused, our guardianship worker called an ambulance as
the guardianship order gave us the authority to veto Julie’s decision if it would be seriously
detrimental to her. Julie was admitted to the hospital and treated for two months for a severe
infection in her foot. Julie came very close to having her foot amputated. During that time, a
number of assessments were completed and Julie was diagnosed as having schizophrenia and a
possible personality disorder. It was determined by her physicians and our guardianship worker that
Julie would not be able to return to her apartment. After many unsuccessful attempts to discuss
with Julie where she would like to live, our worker finally made the decision to move her to a group
home which specializes in serving people with ongoing psychiatric difficulties. Two months after
the emergency guardianship went into place, a court hearing was held and the court determined that

CCND should be named the permanent guardian.

I firmly believe that without the guardianship, Julic would have continued to live in deplorable
conditions and continued to refuse medical treatment until it became life threatening. Without a

guardianship, it is doubtful that Julie would ha\lfe taken advantage of any of these services.

I did not tell you this story because it was exceptionally sad or alarming but more to illustrate that
guardianship is hard work and stories such as this are very common in guardianship. This story
clearly demonstrates the depth of the responsibility that a guardian has on behalf of each ward.
Guardianship is not an 8AM to 5PM, Monday through Friday, job. A guardian must be available 24
hours a day, 365 days per year, to problem solve or provide consent. The saying, “the buck stdps_
here,” really does apply ;[0 guardianship. The court has given us the duty to make these very

difficult decisions on behalf of our wards. A ward can have a team of fifteen pfofessionals working
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with him or her but, eventually, it falls on the guardian’s shoulders to consider everyone’s opinion,
especially the ward’s, and then make the final decision. Here are some examples of decisions that I
frequently face as a guardian: whether to move a person out of his or her home because of a decline
in health; should chemotherapy be tried; do the risks outweigh the benefits of trying a new '
psychiatric drug that offers hope but possibly has severe side effects; how fo take away a person’s
checkbook because there are thousands of dollars in bills and overdrafts but still maintain that
person’s dignity; if an individual with Alzheimer’s disease can no longer eat, should a feeding tube

be inserted in the stomach; and should a person receive CPR if his or her heart or breathing arrests.

I hope that I have given you have a better picture of the services that $4.60 a day would fund.

There are a number of vulnerable elderly persons, people with severe mental illness and individuals
with traumatic brain injuries who have unmet guardianship needs and this bill, with our proposed
amendment, offers them a safety net as well as a chance for.a better life. On behalf of the members
of the task force, we sincerely hope that your committee will look favorably upon our request to
increase the appropriation to $466,888. 1 would like to give a brief breakdown of how the
appropriation would be utilized. The most important part of this legislation is providing day-to-day,
direct guardianship services for up to 75 individuals at a cost of $188,888. Please keep in mind that
these services would only be available as a guardian of last resort. This means that there are no
family members or friends who would be available or appropriate to serve as guardian. Because this
bill is directed toward meeting the needs of vulnerable people who have little or no money, the
proposed appropriation includes an expenditure of $50,000 to help pay for the petitioning process
which is necessary to establish a guardianship. This process requires the services of two (2)
attorneys, a court visitor and a physician or psychologist and it typically costs about $1,000. In
addition, our budget includes the expenditure of $40,000 to fund two (2) essential components:
training of volunteer guardians as well as already established guardians and the development of
formalized standards of practice for guardians. The budget includes an expenditure of $133,000
toward administrative costs that the entity, with which the ND Department of Human Services

contracts, would incur.

SB 2028 will have an immediate and positive impact on the lives of people with diminished
capacity who are at risk of harm. On behalf of the task force, I am respectfully asking each of you to

support SB 2028 and our proposed amendment by making a “Do Pass” recommendation. I would '

welcome any Questions that you may have. Thank you!
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AMENDMENTS TO SB 2028
For Senator Tom Fischer
March 7, 2005

Page 1, line 14, replace “$40,000” with “$466,888”
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House Human Services Committee - March 7, 2005
Testimony in support of SB 2028
~-Rodger Wetzel, LSW, MPA/MHA, Eldercare Program Director,
St. Alexius Medical Center, Bismarck, ND

Committee Chair Price and members of the House Human Services Committee:

My name is Rodger Wetzel. I am the Director of the Eldercare Program at St.
Alexius. I have been in this position for 19 years. Prior to this position, I was the Assistant
Director of the Aging Services Division of the NDDHS. I also am a member of the
Guardianship Association of ND (GAND), and was elected co-chair of the state
Guardianship Task Force which has been addressing ND guardianship needs.

In the past 33 years.] have been directly involved in over 300 guardianships. Most
often I have served as the “court visitor”, the social worker who completes the required
social assessment of the client/guardian for the district judge and client prior to the
guardianship hearing. I also have worked with persons with dementia for 19 years. I, and
some attorneys I know who have guardianship expertise, often have been asked to donate our
services when there is no available funding, but cannot continue to do this on a regular basis.

In North Dakota we do not have a program when our most vuinerable people, because
of mental incapacity, need a guardianship just to help them with basic human needs and
essential services. .

We compliment the 2003 ND Legislature for passing SCR 4008, and the Legislative
Council for choosing this study. We also compliment the Interim Criminal Justice
Committee for introducing this legislation, for their strong support, and for their willingness
to work so closely with the state Guardianship Task Force in addressing guardianship needs.
We also appreciate the Senate Judiciary Committee’s recent support for this legislation, but
now we are very concerned about the proposed reduction in funding.

These very vulnerable populations are “mentally incapacitated” individuals who are
elderly, are chronically mentally ill, or who have experienced a traumatic brain injury. The
developmentally disabled population generally are served by the state through contracted
guardianship services. Qur statewide Task Force competed a statewide survey to give us an
estimated number of individuals needing these guardianship services, and this number has
been used to estimate costs in this legislation. (State Task Force Membership is provided.)

Let me give you a common example I have experienced: An elderly lady, low
income with no immediate family, is living in her own apartment. She has been a good
citizen all of her life. She now has Alzheimer’s disease which has progressed so that she is
not mentally able to take care of herself or her home. Her apartment is becoming a risk to
the health and safety of herself and other building residents. She is not able to manage her
own finances, and has given away some funds. She is not applying for needed services, is
not taking a bath or her meds, and not seeing a doctor, so her other health problems are
increasing. But she still believes she is doing “just fine”, which is typical of people with
dementias. It is probable that with a guardian authorized to make sure she applies for and
receives essential services, and helps her manage her money, that she could continue to
function at home, out of a facility, and reduce her emergency medical care problems.

(over)




Often the guardianship is necessary first link to home and community-based
services, financial management, and medical care.

But because she has very limited finances, there are no funds to pay the costs ofa
guardianship hearing or to pay a guardian/agency a monthly fee to manage her affairs. If she
did have a relative or volunteer willing to step forward and voluntarily serve as her guardian,
that relative may not fully understand the serious responsibilities of being a legal guardian,
which could include managing her finances, legal affairs, living arrangements, medical care,
any nursing home placement, mental health service needs, and other needs. We do support
recruiting and training volunteer guardians, when possible. So there is a need for basic

standards for all guardians and a need for some basic guardianship training, whether the
guardian is a volunteer or receives a monthly fee. These (underlined) needs are addressed in
this bill. :
Other examples of people who often fail between the cracks are chronically mentally
ill or brain-injured persons who have limited resources and no interested family members.
Sometimes these individuals have exhausted any willing family support because of their
long-term serious mental illness or continuing behavior problems, and they need an outside
party, such as a guardian, to make sure they apply for needed services, and continue these
services, which may help keep them out of institutional settings or hospitals. Or it may be
determined that they need a guardian when they are discharged.

I urge you to give a “do pass” to SB 2028, so that all these mentally incapacitated
individuals, generally through no fault of their own, may receive essential guardianship
services, including legal hearings and monthly monitoring. In addition, there would be basic
standards developed for all guardians, and basic guardianship training provided.

These people are mentally incapable of managing their own lives. They legally may
leave a nursing home because no one has the legal authority to keep them there. They may
remain in a mental institution or psychiatric unit because no one will legally assume their
care after discharge. Or without family, they may remain in life and death situation ina
hospital or nursing home for days or weeks, since no one legally can make their health care
decisions. o

Please support these basic critical guardianship services for our people in the most
vulnerable state...being mentally incapacitated, being poor and having no supportive family
members.

Other members of our state Task Force will provide additional information on specific
cost issues and guardian responsibilities.

- Thank you! Iwould be happy to answer any questions.
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TESTIMONY - PROTECTION AND ADVOCACY PROJECT
SB 2028 - HOUSE HUMAN SERVICE COMMITTEE
HONORABLE CLARA SUE PRICE, CHAIRMAN
March 7, 2004, 2:00 p.m.

Chairman Price, and members of the House Hurman Services
Committee, I am Bruce Murry, an employee of the North Dakota
Protection and Advocacy Project (P&A).

P&A supports SB 2028 for three reasons - community
integration, safety, and proper standards.

Changes in health may leave a person unable to manage some
of their affairs without assistance. In some situations, a guardian
could be the last step to help someone remain in their community. A
guardian must fulfill high standards and serve the interests of the
ward, as required by the laws referenced in SB 2028.

Families and friends provide this assistance in many situations.
However, friends and family grow apart, move, or have their heaith
fail. Some people may exhibit behaviors related to their injury or
condition that alienate family and friends. For these and other
reasons, pecople may not have access to a qualified guardian.

A system exists to provide guardians of last resort to people with
developmental disabilities. There is not a consistent system of last
resort for people with dementias, brain injury, or mental health
problems. This leaves people at increased risk of harm, exploitation,
health crises, and institutionalization.

The original proposed funding for SB 2028 was reasonable. The
Senate reduction to 5% funding does little to address the need.
However, Senator Fischer’s proposal to fund SB 2028 at 60% would
accomplish a substantial part of the goals of the original propasal. I
request your committee so amend SB 2028 and recommend it for
passage to the House.

Thank you for your consideration. I would be happy to answer
any questions.



House Appropriations Committee — Human Resources Division
Testimony on Senate Bill 2028
Representative Jeff Delzer, Chairman
March 22, 2005

Good morning, Chairman Delzer and committee members. My name is Donna Byzewski
and I am co-chair with Rodger Wetzel of the North Dakota Guardianship Task Force. Iam
also supervisor of the Guardianship Division at Catholic Charities North Dakota (CCND).
Our agency has been providing corporate guardianship services since 1986. Currently,

CCND serves as guardian for more than 350 people with developmental disabilities.

From August 2003 to August 2004, the North Dakota Guardianship Task Force worked
closely with the Interim Criminal Justice Committee as it studied the status of guardianship
services in North Dakota. The Task Force strongly supported this study because of the gap
in the availability of guardianship services for people with mental illness, vulnerable elderly
individuals and persons with traumatic brain injuries. Based on the frequent requests for
services from our agency and other guardianship programs and the findings of the survey
completed for the Interim Criminal Justice Committee, there are a number of people with
diminished capacity who are experiencing life threatening situations, medical emergencies,
abuse or neglect issues, psychiatric difficulties, financial exploitation and the need for
appropriate housing/residential services. A guardianship is established because the court has
determined that the person is at significant risk because his or her ability to make
responsible decisions is compromised. Guardianship is very intrusive and should only be
used as a last resort because it involves taking some or all rights away from the individual
and giving them to the guardian. These are very vulnerable péople who are at tremendous

risk because they do not have the safety net of a guardian.

There are a number of indigent, vulnerable people in North Dakota and this bill offers them
a chance for a better life. By increasing the appropriation to $446,888, it would now be
possible for the Department of Human Services to contract with an entity to develop a
comprehensive service system that is truly needed. The Task Force put much energy and
time inté developing an accurate budget of how the appropriation could be utilized. Today,
I'would like to provide a more detailed explanation of the different sections of this suggested

budget.




Guardianship Services: The most important part of this legislation is providing day-to-day,
direct guardianship services for up to 75 individuals at a cost of $188,888. The rate for the
provision of guardianship services is $4.60 per ward/per day. Once appointed by the court,
the guardian has the duty and responsibility to make very difficult decisions on behalf of the
ward. The following are some examples of decisions that guardians frequently face:
whether to move a person out of his or her home because of a decline in health; should
chemotherapy be tried or not; do the risks outweigh the benefits of trying a new psychiatric
drug that offers hope but possible severe side effects; how to take away a person’s
checkbook because of thousands of dollars in bills and overdrafts but still maintain that
person’s dignity; if an individual with Alzheimer’s disease can no longer eat, should a
feeding tube be inserted in the stomach; should a person receive CPR if his or her hea1:t or
breathing arrests; etc. A guardian must be available 24 hours a day, 365 days per year, to
problem solve or provide consent. Please keep in mind that these services would only be
available as a guardian of last resort. The majority of referrals would involve individuals
who have no family members who are available or appropriate to serve as guardian or those
who do have family but have worn them out because of the severity and unpredictability of
their particular disability. Given the depth of responsibility that a guardian has, 1 can
honestly say that $4.60 per ward/per day is money well spent.

Court Costs: Because this bill is directed towards meeting the needé of indigent, vulnerable
people, the appropriation also includes an expenditure of $50,000 for petitioning costs. To
establish a guardianship, the services of two (2) attorneys (a petitioning attorney and a
guardian ad litem) as well as a court visitor and psychologist or physician are required. This
typically costs about $1,000. This is a key portion of this bill and it must go hand in hand
with the above-mentioned guardianship services. Without funding for petitioning costs, a
person would not be able to access the needed day-to-day guardianship services and as a

result remain at risk of harm.

Training and Standards: In addition, the appropriation includes the expenditure of $40,000

to fund two essential components: training of volunteer and already established guardians
and the development of formalized standards of practice for guardians. For those

guardianship cases where the needs are less intense, a volunteer guardian could be a perfect




match. However, it would be too risky to assign a volunteer guardian before the person has

had in-depth training as well as a thorough background check. This training would also be
available to family members or others who are currently serving as a guardian. The
establishment of standards of practice is an area about which the Task Force felt very
strongly. Having consistent, recognized standards for guardians is critical to help ensure
that persons with diminished capacity are receiving high quality guardianship support. One
thought would be to incorporate standards of practice into North Dakota’s excellent

guardianship law.

Administrative Costs: The two (2) year budget also includes an expenditure of $188,888
toward administrative costs that the entity, with which DHS contracts, would incur. It was
important to the Task Force to include all start up costs, salaries and benefits for a minimum
of two employees (a director and a part-time support staff person) and necessary operating
costs so that the recipient of the RFP would have the necessary tools to create and
coordinate a unified guardianship service system for people with mental illness, vulnerable

elderly individuals and persons with a traumatic brain injury.

In closing, passage of this bill will have an immediate and positive impact on the lives of
people who are at risk of harm and need the support of a guardian. On behalf of the Task
Force, 1 am respectfully asking each of you to support SB 2028 by increasing the
appropriation to $466,888 prior to making a “Do Pass” recommendation. I would welcome

any questions that you may have. Thank you!




